FIVE CITIES FIRE AUTHORITY

Stephen C. Lieberman, Executive Officer
Tricia Meyers, Clerk to the Board
David P. Hale, General Counsel

Keith Storton, Chair
Jeff Lee, Vice Chair
Karen White, Board Member

AGENDA

BOARD MEETING
FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 2021-9:00 A.M.

In the interest of the Governor’'s Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Board or staff
will participate in this meeting via teleconference. Members of the public may listen to the
meeting and provide public comment via telephone by calling 1(833)611-0393. Members
of the public may also participate in the meeting electronically by submitting public
comments to the Clerk to the Board at tmeyers@fivecitiesfire.org no later than the meeting
start time of 9:00 A.M. Emailed comments will be received directly by the Clerk and will be
read out loud during the meeting. Public comment is subject to the customary 3-minute
time limit.

CALL TO ORDER

FLAG SALUTE

ROLL CALL

AGENDA REVIEW:

At this time the Board will review the order of business to be conducted and receive requests for,

or make announcements regarding any change(s) in the order of the day. The Board should, by
motion, approve the agenda as presented or as revised.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

1. Consideration of Approval of Minutes (MEYERS)
Recommended Action: Approve the minutes of the Board Meeting of July 16, 2021.

COMMUNITY COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS:

This public comment period is an invitation to members of the community to present issues,
thoughts, or suggestions on matters not scheduled on this agenda. Comments should be limited
to those matters that are within the jurisdiction of the Board. The Brown Act restricts the Board
from taking formal action on matters not published on the agenda. In response to your comments,
the Chair or Vice Chair may:



BOARD MEETING AGENDA - SEPTEMBER 17, 2021
PAGE 2

e Direct Authority staff to assist or coordinate with you.
e A Board Member may state a desire to meet with you.
* It may be the desire of the Board to place your issue or matter on a future Board agenda.

CONSENT AGENDA:

The following routine items listed below are scheduled for consideration as a group. The
recommendations for each item are noted. Any member of the public who wishes to comment on
any Consent Agenda item may do so at this time. Any Board Member, the Fire Chief or General
Counsel may request that any item be pulled from the Consent Agenda to permit discussion or
change the recommended course of action. The Board may approve the remainder of the

Consent Agenda on one motion.

1. Consideration of Cash Disbursement Activity(LIEBERMAN)

Recommended Action: Receive and file the listing of cash disbursements for the
period of July 1, 2021 through August 31, 2021.

CONTINUED BUSINESS:

None.

NEW BUSINESS:

a. Station Coverage Constraints Related to Memorandum of Agreement _and

Temporary Staffing Options(LIEBERMAN)

Recommended Action: It is recommended the Board receive the staff report and provide
direction to the Fire Chief.

BOARD MEMBER ITEMS:
The following item(s) are placed on the agenda by a Board Member who would like to receive

feedback, obtain consensus to direct staff to prepare information, and/or request a formal agenda
report be prepared and the item placed on a future agenda. No formal action can be taken.

None.

FIRE CHIEF ITEMS:
The following item(s) are placed on the agenda by the Fire Chief in order to receive comments,

feedback and/or request direction from the Board. No formal action can be taken.

a. Fire Chief Updates



BOARD MEETING AGENDA - SEPTEMBER 17, 2021
PAGE 3

GENERAL COUNSEL ITEMS:
The following item(s) are placed on the agenda by the General Counsel in order to receive
comments, feedback and/or request direction from the Board. No formal action can be taken.

None.

BOARD COMMUNICATIONS:
Correspondence/Comments as presented by the Board.

CLOSED SESSION:

None.

ADJOURNMENT

dededekeddeddohdodkkk ik i hddddhiikidiiickd

All staff reports or other written documentation, including any supplemental material distributed to
a majority of the Board within 72 hours of a regular meeting, relating to each item of business on
the agenda are available for public inspection during regular business hours in the Clerk to the
Board’s office, 140 Traffic Way, Arroyo Grande. If requested, the agenda shall be made available
in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by the Americans with
Disabilities Act. To make a request for disability-related modification or accommodation, contact
the Clerk to the Board's office at 805-473-5490 as soon as possible and at least 48 hours prior to

the meeting date.

Any documentation or materials to be submitted by the General Public for consideration by the

Board shall be submitted to the Clerk to the Board by email at tmeyers@fivecitiesfire.org, no later
than 24 hours prior to the above scheduled time for the Five Cities Fire Authority Board meeting.

Failure to submit documents or any materials at least 24 hours prior to the scheduled time for the
Board meeting shall be grounds for the Board to reject consideration or review of those items
unless otherwise required by state or local laws.

This agenda was prepared and posted pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2. Agendas
are posted at the Arroyo Grande City Hall, 300 E. Branch Street, Arroyo Grande, Headquarters ~
Station 1, 140 Traffic Way, Arroyo Grande, the Grover Beach City Hall, 154 S. 8 Street, Grover
Beach, Station 2, 701 Rockaway Avenue, Grover Beach, and Oceano Community Services
District, 1655 Front Street, Oceano.

keRhddkkihlikhkihkdkkitihkkkkikhiikkik

Agenda reports can be accessed and downloaded from the Five Cities Fire Authority Website at
www . fivecitiesfireauthority.org.




MINUTES
FIVE CITIES FIRE AUTHORITY

BOARD MEETING
FRIDAY, JULY 16, 2021

CALL TO ORDER:
Chair Storton called the in-person Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA) Board meeting to order at 09:00 a.m.

FLAG SALUTE:
Chair Storton led the Flag Salute.

ROLL CALL:
FCFA Board: Chair Keith Storton, Vice Chair Jeff Lee and Board Member Karen White.

FCFA Staff Present: Fire Chief Stephen Lieberman, General Counsel Molly Thurmond and Clerk to the
Board Tricia Meyers.

AGENDA REVIEW:
Action: Vice Chair Lee moved, Board Member White seconded, and the motion passed unanimously to approve

the Five Cities Fire Authority’s Agenda by roll call vote.

AYES: Lee, White, Storton
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

CLOSED SESSION:
The Board adjourned to a Closed Session at 09:01 a.m. concerning the following item:

a. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS pursuant to Government Code Section
54957.6:

Agency Negotiators: Che Johnson — Law Firm of Liebert Cassidy Whitmore
Nicole Valentine — Accounting Manager — Arroyo Grande
Karla Mattocks — Human Resources Coordinator-Grover Beach
Tashina Ureno — Human Resources Manager-Arroyo Grande

Represented Employees: International Association of Fire Fighters (IAFF) Local 4403

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION:
General Counsel Thurmond called the meeting back to order at 09:08 a.m. with no reportable action.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
Consideration of Approval of Minutes.
Action: Approved the minutes of the Board Meeting on May 21, 2021 and the Special Board Meeting on June

11, 2021 with a roll call vote.

AYES: Lee, White, Storton
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None



Minutes: Five Cities Fire Authority Board Meeting Page 2
Friday, July 16, 2021

COMMUNITY COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS:

None

CONSENT AGENDA:
Chair Storton asked if there was any public comment. No public comment was received. Chair Storton pulled

item 3. from the Consent Agenda. Staff responded to questions from the Board and moved to approve item 3.

3. Consideration of Changes to Unrepresented Employee Compensation.
Action: 1) Adopted a Resolution to increase compensation for unrepresented management employees
and the unrepresented part-time Office Assistant Il position. 2) Approved to appropriate an additional
$13,500 from the fund balance to reflect the 3% increase.

Vice Chair Lee moved and Board Member White seconded the motion to approve Consent Agenda ltem 3. The
motion passed on the following roll call vote:

AYES: Lee, White, Storton
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

Board Member White moved and Vice Chair Lee seconded the motion to approve the following Consent Agenda
items 1, 2, and 4. The motion passed on the following roll call vote:

AYES: White, Lee, Storton
NOES: None
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: None

1. Consideration of Cash Disbursement Activity.
Action: Received and filed the listing of cash disbursements for the period of June 1, 2021 through June

30, 2021.

2. Consideration of a Resolution Adopting Revised Job Descriptions for the Positions of Fire

Captain, Fire Engineer, and Firefighter.
Action: Adopted a Resolution revising job descriptions for positions of Fire Captain, Fire Engineer, and

Firefighter.

4. Consideration of Approval of Successor Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) and a Resolution
with the International Association of Fire Fighters(IAFF) Local 4403 for FY 2021-22.
Action: Approved a successor MOU with the IAFF Local 4403 and approved a Resolution.



Minutes: Five Cities Fire Authority Board Meeting Page 3
Friday, July 16, 2021

PROTEST HEARINGS:

Public Hearing and Consideration of Resolution Confirming Weed Abatement Cost Accounting
Report Consistent with Health and Safety Code Section 14905 and 14906 ET SEQ. Chief
Lieberman presented the staff report to the Board regarding the final process for the yearly weed
abatement program. A list of properties abated, including the cost, was presented to the Board with the
report. Chief Lieberman did point out that the property located on Calvin Court in Grover Beach had
significant issues that were a fire hazard, including weed abatement that led to a removal fee of nearly
$12,000. Chair Storton asked if anyone would like to protest their property being on the list. No public
comment or protest was received on this item. Therefore, the information will be submitted to the County
to be assessed on the property owner’s tax bill.

Action: Vice Chair Lee moved and Board Member White seconded the motion to approve the Resolution
confirming weed abatement costs.

AYES: Lee, White, Storton
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

CONTI

NUED BUSINESS:

None.

NEW BUSINESS:

Fire Station Cost/Data Analysis and Comparison to CAL FIRE Pismo Beach Contract. Chief
Lieberman presented a staff report regarding the cost for various fire and emergency response models
per the direction of community partners. His report included financial model options for fire service: 1)
Status Quo; 2) Fully Staffed; 3) Stand Alone; and 4) CAL FIRE contract. The scope of this report was to
provide factual alternatives for emergency services. The resuits of the analysis confirmed that there is
an efficiency for these member partners to share operating costs, equipment and staff. The data
identified the benefits of having multiple stations in the current service area. Chief Lieberman pointed
out that FCFA will require additional funding for staffing and equipment, but it remains to be a cost
effective model. No public comment was received. The Board received and filed the report.

BOARD MEMBER ITEMS:

None.

GENERAL COUNSEL ITEMS:

None.



Minutes: Five Cities Fire Authority Board Meeting Page 4
Friday, July 16, 2021

FIRE CHIEF ITEMS:

a. FCFA Strike Team that has been at the River Fire will be demobilizing and returning home.

b. Chief Lieberman reported that were no significant incidents reported on July 4th,

¢. FCFA is currently in the process of an internal recruitment for Fire Captain and Fire Engineer, as well
as a recruitment for Firefighter.

d. The Wildland Engine has been fully funded by the financing company. FCFA staff will be traveling to
Florida to attend a preconstruction meeting for the build where the design will be confirmed.

e. Chief Lieberman participated in an interview on KVEC radio talk show.

FCFA staff responded to a vegetation fire in the dunes and utilized UTV 1.

Chief Lieberman will be on vacation from August 19t through September 6th.

0

BOARD COMMUNICATIONS:
Vice Chair Lee reported that Grover Beach Police wrote 8 violations on July 4t for illegal fireworks.

ADJOURNMENT:
Chair Storton adjourned the meeting at 10:38 a.m. The next Board meeting is scheduled for August 20, 2021,

at 9:00 a.m.

KEITH STORTON, CHAIR

ATTEST:

TRICIA MEYERS, CLERK TO THE BOARD



STAFF REPORT

)

f{v 3 0y rgi

Chair and Board Members MEETING DATE: September 17, 2021

FROM: Stephen C. Lieberman, Fire Chief
Nicole Valentine, Treasurer

SUBJECT: Consideration of Cash Disbursement Ratification

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA) Board of Directors review, receive and accept the
attached listing of cash disbursements for the period July 1 through August 31, 2021.

BACKGROUND

The FCFA JPA agreement identifies the City of Arroyo Grande as the agency providing financial services to the fire
department. The City processes payroll and accounts payable on behalf of the FCFA. Historically, the City has
processed FCFA payroll on City checks (using a City bank account). The City recovers 100% of these payroll costs
along with related staff time. FCFA staff is working with the City to determine if payroll can be processed utilizing
FCFA checks/bank account.

Cash disbursements are made weekly based on the submission of all required documentation and supporting
invoices for costs incurred/services rendered. The Fire Chief reviews all disbursement documents before they are

submitted to the City for processing.
FISCAL IMPACT

There is a $1,506,102.71 fiscal impact that includes the following items:

» Accounts Payable Checks $ 377,034.52
«  Payroll and Benefit Checks $1,129,068.19

ALTERNATIVES

The following alternatives are provided for the Board’s consideration:
1. Approve the staff recommendation
2. Do not approve the staff recommendation
3. Provide other direction.

ATTACHMENTS
July 1 through August 31, 2021 Accounts Payable Register

July 1 through August 31, 2021 Payroll and Check Register

PREPARED BY
Stephen C. Lieberman, Fire Chief



L INJWHOVLLY

VOREINY 40 iNVE|
VOIIY 40 YINVE
VORIINY 40 YiNve|
VOININY 40 YiNvE
VOIMINY 40 3NV}
VOIIAY 40 SNV m
VORIV 40 SINvEl|
 VOIMIWY S0 YNV
_YorEwvoiive]
FEERY G HvE
VOIMIY 40 YNvE

181V,

1y

EEH.__

JANVHO OAOHYY 40 ALID.
JANYHD OAOHYY 40 Eom
JANVHO OAOHYY 40 Eo_M
Y

SLEN 1S J0pusA |

eLeg’) _,N_w..omw.w. H3N3IdO HOOd JOVHYD mOI<L.-ZON<§< 0L'Le

1095'L 27 062

Jovebizyose,

€0ES'LIZY06C;

won._._.Nw.omN"., - - Oz_n_n___._m-m&.ma.,m.o.m.vm

L0EY'L L2V 062 A1ddNS JOIMOd HOrvW-NYNL13Y 1Ig3yo vm_.w_.-

LOEY'LLZY 062 | JOHVL 1202-A1ddNS ALIVS YNV 'Z€°05
L0E9'HLZY 062 Li41NO JOHVYL 1202-AHLNNOD HONOY |0€ZF1
802" F,F.Nw.oomm ONIddIHS-Sdn W_S.ow

LOED'L L2V 06T LI41N0 F0HVL L20Z-WHVL YNNILNY JHL S8'69)
809G°}LZ¥ 062 . 13N4:9€°95

cosg 2y e AIHSUIENIN NSSY S1HO 314 VO v 886
Bt 2y 06z e WoOZEEYL

P

NOLLId3dX3 HOA w._.Dm._.m .KOOIw.ZONS\,,_(”.vO.MNN

EOVS'LLZY 06T SDHHO LINDJYID 6L1EE016E6#NYY M.”Nm.mt.
€0YS'LLZY 062 SOYHD LINDHIO ‘8LLEEOLBEB#NYE :26'ELL

€0vS’ L1gv'o6e: §2/90-62/S S3NOHd mm‘_.mmo_.mmm#z,«..m_ |8€729L

LO¥S eV 062 INVHAAH FHI4-S334 HIMISHILVM (€1'9

_/.._O_._..«..mu_mm_.,w.m_m_.n_ m_m.._>>mw\mm.._..<>> :6E°6EL
LOVS'L1Ey'06T; . AVM Olddvdl o_‘_.-wm.m_.u_ m_m_>>mw\mm_._.<>.> o1'60e
Mm_OE..w.H<§ ‘S13IMOL TVINIH-S3NddNS dOHS :£9'9€2 )

# 1oy uonduosaq |

1202 'L 1SN9oNV - L AINCP
ONILSIT MO3HO
ALIMOHLNY 3dI4 S3LLID 3AI4

8L

h8LL

18LL
18LL
8L
18LL
18LL
18LL
18LL
8L
8L
08LL
i08LL
l08LL
BLLL
WQNNA
BLLL

8111

unowy/

1202/60/L0

120Z/60/20
L202/60/L0
1202/60/£0 ;
+202/60/L0
1202/60/L0

+202/B0/LO.

+202/60/L0!

120Z/60/L0
1202/60/L0
120Z/60/L0 |
L20Z/60/L0 |
L 202/60/L0

+20e/60/L0

1§

120¢/60/L0

1202/60/L0
1202/60/L0

LZ02/60/L0

8l
n_._
o_..
Sl
143
€L

4

oL

8

©

L

&leqpeu  aur



SNOILYOINNININOD HILHVHO |
S1HVd OLNY 1SIN0UYO,

ONI ‘SHOSSFHJNOO HaNVa!
VOIHINY HO XNV
VOISINY 40 Nve |
VOIHIY 40 NVE|

VOIMINY 40 YiNva!

VOIIIY 4O MINVE

<O_Iu§<.u0 v_Z<m
VYOIM3INY JO ¥Z<m_
VORI 40 iNvE
VoY 0318
ORIV 40NV
YOIHIWY 40 MNve
VOIHINY 40 YNV _
vonaY 1051ve
YOl SO vE]
VOIH3AAY 40 YNve
YOIH3aAY n_,O v_z<m_

YOIHIWY 40 NV !

LOVS LLZH 062!
109G LLZ¥'062 |

£09S°LLZY 062 |

1095’} _.Nv.om.wmx.

E0VS'LIZV 06T

£V 1121 06,

L09S"L 12V 062

v0SS'LIey'062:

Y055 L12Y 062
102G LLZY 062
H0SS"}12Y 062
Smm.:wv_.oomw
£019'1121 062,
L0SS'HIZY 06T |

800G'L 12062

LOEY'LI2¥'062

L0EQ'| L2V 062 ]

809G°L 12062

095" 1127062

 A\LZNLS 6120200010/81284190V 85'811
1699 HSNYG-Y3IHSY 14 L'ge
... QUM TTICON TOHINOO 1O VS £ 348
Z‘O._w.,Zm_m_WDm H3HO1dX3 n_.m_On_-ZON<_>_< ”.,mv.mh—.
 ONZINOO 08 1Lk

]

OIdNLS NI TIVO,00°GE.

3ISN30N FdVYMLIH0S MIANIH-ISH3 bo.oo.o..v. .

SONILIIN HOH I34400-SHONGHVLS ,Wom.mm
DNILITIW 1SV4.8 SHIFNVHO ALD ommoo.mw

$3MddNS 301440-10d3d 01440 L6°€L}

X008 ONINIVHL INOSTH ONO 2G2S

SR
. HHOTOVHOLS INOH:H T1deV 660

ONINIVHL HO4 HIFWNT-30Vd B wxm,:m.m._om.wom
AN 6v°9F

Wb 56
ONIddIHS-SdN wﬁ.mm

LI41N10 JOHVL H20Z-SNDIS YONID 199'1£Z
0299-13N4:98°29

SAMNAdNS DONINVITO- LYYW VM [8F'EE

1202 ‘L€ LSNONV - L AINP

mvwnn
ot
W._“thh
L7
o
saus
184L

8uL

18LL

reu
. 184L
su
. 18LL
e
o

18LL

1811
18LL

18LL

18LL

L202/60/£0

+202/60/L0;

120¢2/60/L0

L202/60/L0
L202/60/L0
&8\8\8_”

1202/60/L0

1€02/60/L0

1202/B0/LO’
L20Z/B0/L0|

L202/60/L0

1€02/60/L0

| eoersoio,
1202/60/L0
1202/0IL0 .
1202I60/L0
120Z/60/L0

1.202/60/40

1202/60/L0

1202/60/L0:

8¢

L

o,

g
yE |
ee,
zei
T3

0€;

62

%

L

14

4
vz,
€z,
ze!

\e,

0z

6}

ONILSITMO3HD
} INSWHOVLLY ALIMOHLNY 3414 S3ILID JAIL



L INJWHOVLLY

O._._ <w: m<mum_<

O._._ <wD w<muw=<

‘ mmm_._m_m_>> ZON_mm_>
O._._ mo_._.>._<z< .n._0<m_._.
O._._ wO_._.>J<Z< m_0<m_._.

ONI m_._o>o_mm_5 .

m<0._<00m

OZ_ m_m_._. <_m<_>_ <._.Z<w
mm.rw<_>_ mOZ<m

OZ_ >m_m0_Omm__>_m_ 1% m

REMLEE S >._._ZD_>__>_OU Oz<m_00,

UZ_ mm<>>n_I<I m_0< w.mm_z_s_
OZ_ m_m_<>>n_m<_.._ m_0< w.mm_z_s_

ONI mm<>>om<z mo< m_mm_z_s_ ..

ONI m_m<>>n_m<_._ m_0< w.m_mz_s_

0._._ ._On__Xm_._ .

OZ_ muz_n_<0woz<._ _ZZ<_. n_ v_
ONI ONIdVOSANY INNVT n_ v__.
ONI 02_&<UMDZ§ INNVT Dv_
ONI O.Z._n_<UWDZ<._ INNVP .n_.v_.m

. m_1_<I d O_><D
I0<mm m_m_>0m.® n_O >._._U
O._._ OZ_._.wm_._. m_n_<w.__<n_

OZ_ m_<>>wn_ m:..

O._n_< _>_m_n_ >><|_ mm_2<n_
O._._ m_wzmm>>m_m0.
wO_ZON_._.Om_._m_ ._.w<00
SUeN «wm.._ 1OPUSA

SNOLLYDINNNNOD HILHYHO |

momm _‘_.Nv omN.
- movm _.FNv omw

.ohmm I _.Nv omw
ohmm _.va omN

.Foom _,FN¢ omN
. —omm _.Fww omN

€089 LkZv 062!
1OV’ LIZY 062]

mmm_oz_._>o zmc>xo 4<o_om_s_ ?: om (4% .
.Ez.mm mm_n_z:>o zmc>xo\zoom< m 4
wm_z_\._ W_,zo_._n_ 508 Bm_‘mmoaﬁou,q g Rm .
@ ONITdIAYS HIV m_z_Som 8 wt ]
_ E oz_._n__>_<m HIv m_z_SOm 8 68
ws0dsId o:mn_ m:oom<N<_._-m_n_<m CETES 8 S

¢N\m.mm\m L NLS- mm0_>w_m_w w<mu —o 681

momm _,_.N¢ omN

momm :«« omm
€0ES'LITH" 8N,
§0ES'H12Y 062!
LOVS' LLZv 062!
L089'L L2 062!

zémumm_._ SFIHO-dIZ 1D 089

_ NVANIEIITAYIQIONENS mn.bf.

hzm_m NS ¥l 1276012120, 00°05L°
ove 10 INIBHOSEY 'INIVd AVHdS 18LE
SHINILSVH 01'E
INIVd AVHdS S¥'9

S100L TIVNS | 0E'¥

mmmm Liey omN
—owm :Nv omN

mnmm 3 _.Nv omN
me _. FNv omw
mmmm _._.Nv omN
mmmm _._.N¢ omN
.m.mm.m :.N.v omN...
665°112¥ 062

m_mu-w0>w .rzms_m_._.<m_< n_m_m_>> No moh c

SOAS VDI 404d 12/90 05°2¥9
02/8-02/$ 2 1S~ S1S00 T99d 20'685'L
E0ESHLZY 062
8095'L 42062
£06S'|12¥ 062
1095t &w.oom_.,
90951 12¥' Sm

#100v]

._m_Dn_ mh 82yl
w0>w ._<0m._ n_Omn_ _.N\mo om NmN
m_m<>>._.n_0w OZ_._Dn_m_IOm ._.u__Im _.NRO Nm mo_.

O_n_<w_ m._m<._.m_0n_ n_OO>>Zm_v_ m__<n_m_m oN 1ec
uolcil _ummn_

Lovs'Ligy 062 ALE NLS £82910LOLOLSYZB#LOOV ZL'EG
1202 ‘L€ 1SNONY - L ATNF
ONILSITX03HD
ALIHOHLNY 314 S3ILID AAIS

mOI<._. >>m_IO.wm_m_._. wm N_.m _.

m_m_DDm_OOIn_ ? >OjOn_ O>m n_Ow_n_ 000 Nmo 8

mu< m0>...u. ._.Zm§m_._.<m< n_m_m_>> oN m#m 6
OO m0>m ._.Zm__>_m._.<m< Om_M>> oh vmw 3

m%!ODm._.-ZO_._.Omn_mZ_ ._<DZZ< co mwo N

'£08L
”mown
1208L

“Pown

[108L
oo
661
'86LL

L6LL

196LL
s6LL
Y6LL
VBLL
veLL
eLL
‘e6LL

leeLe
Z6LL

Z6LL
2611
ez
Momhh

eaLL

8841

_8uL

98LL
G8LL

y8LL

&ou\mgo 99/
&omam\s \8,“
L202/60/L0!  +9
1202/60/20| €9,
1202/60/L0, 29
N \202/60/L0} 19
Eomao;o 09
&omaok_o, 6g’
1202/60/L0  8G:
1202/601L0, LS|
&.omaok.o_,_ 9s.
|202/60/L0. S5,
LZ0Z/60/LO.  ¥S:
1202/60/L0° €S
L202/60/L0¢ TS
L202/60/L0; LS
P__No.mao\_aw 05
1202/60/L0.  6Y.
__Romaoks 8y,
|Z0Z/60/L0, L'
L202/60/L0; oF
\Z0Z/60/L0, S
rwom\mo\hom_ W
120216010 €,
r&owao\s v
;Nowaoko by
1202/60/L0]  OF

av_ooco.. s1BCj YI8YD: aur

1202/60/L0; BE.



L INSJWHOVLLY

SYOTVI0S'

._.n_m_o m_m_n_ >._.ZDOO O._wﬂﬂ
>02m_0< ws_m >._.ZDOO qu
OZ_ mm_._. <_m<_>_ <._.Z<wm

ZO_._.OMZZOO m_m_n_<n_
n_._._ _>__m_IN._.m_<I ®AATT wMOS_.

ONI ‘FHVMAHVH JOV SHINIW/
ONI ‘JHYMAYVYH 30V SHINIW
ONI ‘TUYMAYVH 30V w_mmz_s__

ONI ‘JdvMAYvH 30V m.mm_z_s_ :
‘ wm_m:.Zm_O m_m_<0 ._.Zm_...umD n_O._.mn_mS_
V_ODI._. ? wmm_._ _<m._. !000<m=._

ALND O718 40 "00SSV S43IHD m_w__u_.

ALNO O7S 40 "O0SSY S43IHD m_m__u_g. ,

ALND O._w u_O Uoww< wn_m__Io mm_u_
ALND O1S 40 Ome< wn_m__IO m_m__n_
swep ise’ 6u=m>

ALND 018 n_O OOww< wn_m__IO mm_n_
) <m__<n_

Oz_ m<>>m_n_ m_,
‘wZO_._.<O_ZD_>__>_OO Im_._.m<I0

SNOILYJINNWNOD mm_._.m_<IO |
SNOLLYJINNWNOD m_.n._._.m<_._0,

w._.m<n_ O._.D< ._.wm_DOm<O
m_m_u_ 4<U

O._J ._<O_n_m__>_ m_m_m._. OZDOm_

oM 4<O_Dm=>_ m_m_m._. DZDOm_
1 .w ._.<

¥I<_>_<N_<

LOVS' L2V 062}
80851 &w.omm._

_.omm _. _‘Nv omw

_.omw :.Nv omN

_.on Liey omN“

. momm ey omN

vomm Liey omN
109G :N¢ omN,

~ §095° _.FNv omw

vomm _._.Nv omN

.mwmm _._.Nv omw

LOES'LIZY 062,
£085'L 12V 062,

£055'LLZ 062 .
szes :Nv 8«

SCES'LIZY omm
#1307

| SZESLITV06Z
9/55'L 12V 062

8095°L _.Nv.omN_..
LO¥S'L _,Nv.omN._
_.ovm _,_.N¢ om
Fo¢m _‘_.Nﬁq omN

,_ 10951 12v 062!
. ‘Smm.cmv.omm_m
9028 127 062,

mon _, _.N¢ omN
movm l _.Nv omw
momm 3 Fmv omw

th v_.\w-wm_o_>mmw w<0 N.o wm

m_O_O>Z_ 4<DZZ< w0>w IO._.<n_w_D NN\ _.N>n_ oo mwN _.h_..,

<h<|_<¥-.rm_m_0 wm ._._>_m_ oo oo_. ‘
wm_m_._. m¢ww V_ODW_._. €1 S.m _.
mm_n_<n_ >n_OO _.N. v_._.
m_._.<n_ O._. ._._n_D< 007 ooo N
: n_<.0 Hiv _.m_UD,,E. Z.u._IO._._v_ F Z._.w :. 6
m_n_<._m_ MVS GZ_._.<OOmn=Om_m_ G v_ODN_._. on LE
AVMVIAIH 1334 3SOH-T Z._.m_. L9°GL
~ divd3d Oz_m_s_D._n_ NIHOLIM | Z._.w_ﬁo.vn_.
. I._.mO>>mZm_<n_ ._.On_\>_>_n_ oo 6
._._v_ mm<>>n_m_<_._ ._.ZDOS_ ._m_zz<_._0 mm 16
t>_0_>_ ._.Zm_n.__mu_w__n.?o_._._m_o ecl e oo .....KN
m_m_n_ n__Iwmm_mS_m_s_ ._<DZZ< NN;N\rn_ 000s
m_n_z<w_mu O>Omm< m_m_u_ ._.<_>_ N<I NN\ _.N '00° ooo m

ONV300- m_m_n_ F<_>_ ZvH NN:.N oo ooo N
:o_ﬁcowwn_

_._o<m_m HIAOHD-T34 1VIN ZvH 22z 00 Sc g

SNI E.__m_<_._\>Emn_omn_ 2Z21ZAd 00 €01 1y

. Tan4.08'680'
LANYALNI L NLS oamwmuoo%oE_&wﬁoo,*wm.vcm
_ LSNHIINIZNLS ooww.mmooorcrm*\mwﬁoo«\ 86'702
LINYZINIE NLS nmsmsssrmwmwﬁog 8602
..... AdaLive 3dVDS3 QHOA 6002 25’29}
 30VdS GaNINOD 92201HS0-54-d3 1S4 00081
S3NddNS T¥OIA3N 98'SY6
__S3NddNs TYOIGIN 79998

adov OL 3NIT LINJHID ¥EEE
wn_oS_ SLvW w._m_>>9 VN3 S3ddNS dOHS £9'8€Z

1202 1€ 1SNONV - L ATNr

ONILSIT X03HO

ALMOHLINY 3HI4 S31LID 3AI

FNwh
owwn
mvwh
.wwwh
nwwh
orwh
mwwh

Si8L

'S18L

sisL
L

€18L
wamh
zi8L
mmrwm
wNwa

JUNOWY -

. WN_.wN.

,_EK
Sﬁ

B "momh
608

608,
‘808
L08L
9082
oo
5082
po8L

1202210,
.N@@B
\202/EZILO.
120216220
LeoerEziLo,
\202/E2IL0!
\20z/EzIL0!
V20z/EziL0
1202210,
\z0zIEzIL0.
\202/EZiL0.

1202/£2IL0.

1202/EZIL0’
| 202IE2IL0]
Rom\mm\wo “
\202/E2IL0'
#5084

Fwom\mm\ho
FNON\mNRo \
1202/€2/L0!
—Now\mw\ho.
_.NQN\MNRQ
) ._.NoN\mNRo
| _.NoN\mNRo

_.Nom\mw\ho

L202/E2IL0.
12028220
1202/EZILO"
1202/2/L0!

6
€6,
z6'
16

i

68’
88/
(8
o8’
g8
8
€8
z8.
18
08:
6L

2ABQ ¥oayH aur:

8L
LL
oL

St
VL
eL|

A
—.h,
‘on

69

89

L9



L INJWHOVLLY

>Oz.u._0m_m_§m ._.m<00 I._.DOm
>OZm_0w_m__>_m_ ._.w<OO I._.DOm.

._<_m._.w3n_z_ ZO-n_<Zw :

ONI mm<ozm4<o E__._ww

0o O_m._.om_._m_ BSYO O_n__0<n_ .

awep 1se _ou:m>

ONI ‘TdYMQHVYH 30V w.mm_z_s_..,
ONI .m_m<>>n_I<I m0< m_mm_z_s_”,.
ONI m_m_<>>n_m<I m_0< w_mm_Z_s_.

ZOI<_>_O_2 Z<m_w

.mmOs_._.__._>> >D_ww<0 ._.mm_m_m__._
OZ_ w._.ODn_Ow_n_ ZOW>><._

OZ_ whODDOIn_ ZOw>><‘_

n_DOmO ._<O_n_m__>_ ._<_m._.w_._n_z_

dnNoyo ._<0_n_m__>_ ._<_m_._.m302_
. QDOIG ._<o_n_m__>_ ._<_m_._.w3n_z_
. Io<m_m_ mm_>0m_mu u_O >._._O

OZ_ m<>>m_n_ m__,

~ om mm_k<_oomw< 2 woz_._._oo,

sz_._.<O_ZDEEOO m_m_._.w_<IU
>._._|__mO_>_ ._..m._.<

w_u_>

O._._ wo_._.>._<z< m0<m_._.

OZ_ m_._0>0_mm_._.m
>02m_0mm=>_m_ ._.w<OO I._.DOw

>Ozmmum_m=>_m_ ._.w<00 I._.DOw .

>02m_0w_m=>_m_ ._.w<OO I.:._Om

>Ozmmum_m=>_m_ ._.w<OO I._.DOm ‘

AONIODHINWIT 1SVO0D I._.DOw.,

e e
H

1099'L1ZY 062  NOLLO3dSNI L1g £6993! o0 mw
1095'LLZ¥ 062 zo_hm_awz_ 18 v_o:.E( a3aLv4! 008
erzgiiey 062 ‘ ST00L TIVIWS OSIW 06'SL¥
90ES Lz o6z , wm<ozm_._<o LiIHS 2202 28'¥0y
LOVS'LIZY 062" Ty Ew.o_Eom:m_ 011807
#10v, uonGIsaq!
$09S'L12°062 seN8 a31'59°02
62542V 06, _3SOH J0HYHOSIA ‘Ove T00L 2655
,_‘m%m.:wwommm_. OLLVINN3NG THIHM 00V
8095°11ZV06Z; 95" X omt qu_\,m_wm:m__\,_m_m JOVIN 9E'E86
€0£5 LLZy 061 _ SOAS VOI112/20 00°¥6Y
L09E |12 06T 00153 INIVW FTOIHIA 80 26r
109G L1Z 062 O0LS3M INIVW TI0HIA 96086 )
SLES'HIZY 06T " STVOISAHd Vel 00'8ZY
S1EGLIZY 06T  STYOISAHA VN 00' 00201
€08S°H125°062] SIVOISAHd VN 00686
LOVS'LLZV 06T, ZNLS 12/£-12/G YILYM-SLLIILN 26'082
8095'L L2 062+ . HN 90
 e0ESLIZY 0BT .>>m__>mm _>m_5>m s_m<._< 214 VN, 00sze
LOVGLIZY 082 AL | NS 6E£20L09600}SHZ8#100V LY°L L2
SOV LIZY06T. 2HL0-21/30 SDHHO SSTTIHIM Qvell 952
SELS'L1Zr 062 TVAMINZY WNINTHd SONVENSNI Z2/kZ 00191’
E0EG'LIZr06Z, _ IN3IBNY O/M VIG3W ONIdWYS /002
§0ES L2 067 w._E<_>_ N<_._.moz<_._n__>._oo m_“_<m_mm_kw 12/80/0005
1095'} 12V 06T, 3N dINd HIVI3 2699 ££'686
1095112V 06T, . TIMTYNDIS Hive3H 2599 0001}
1095'LL2¥ 06 VI INVIO0D HIveiaH 2699 S0°ELS
10951125 062, v_<m_._ VA HIANNG YIVCi 1999 Sr'EeL'L
1095'L L2062 NILSAS VO HIViM § ONKL vE 962

120z 1€ 1SNONY - L Aanr
ONILSIT MO3HD
ALIMOHLNV 3414 STILID FAIH

6£8L
.._.mmﬁ
gess
. B =
‘og8L
unowy

{GE8L

mmwh
mmwh

vE8L
£e8L
ze8L
izesL
iese
‘LesL
Less
o8z
\6z8L
‘8z8L
1z8L
s
‘gz8L
wvwmn

meh
NNwh

__.Nwﬁ
m.ﬁm.m‘wh..
zz8L
zz8L

| \z0z/E/80.
. 1z0z/080
. 1z0e/E0/80"
20200,
_ 120eE0so,
s1eq yoouo|

#%o9uD

_.Now\mo\wo !

 1202/£0/80)
1202/£0/80,

1202120180
1202/60/80.
1202/60/80'
1202/£0/80)
120Z/E0/80.
\202/50/80|
1202120180,
1202/£0/80,
LZ0Z/E0/80!
&om\moao.u
1202720180

FNoN\mo\wo

1Z02/EEILO"
L20e/ee/Lo _.
1202/ee/L0
—‘NoN.\.MNR(o |

L202/€2ILO

LZ0Z/EZILO’
L202/€2/L0|
1Z0Z/EZILO.

ccl;
1zl

ozl
.m_._..

w_. H
d:_.._

m
9Ll
SLL:

PLL:

€Ll

cLl

LLL
oLl
601

801
01!

901
soL|
- voL!
goL
' z01]
LOL,
00L:
66
86
L6
%
. mw__



} INJWHOVLLY

<O_m_m__>_< n_O v_2<m_
<O_Im=>_< 40 v_Z<m
YOIHaNY 40 YNvE:
VOISINY 40 YNve

VOIRIY 40 NvE,

VORIV 40 YNV ”__
VOIMINY 40 v_z<m

VOIdIWY 40 x2<m_ ,
VOIHINY 40 xz<m_ |

VOIHIWY 40 YNvE| :
B <O_m_m_>_< .._O v_2<m

_<o_mm__>_< “_o v_z<m ..

b VOIINY u_o v_z<m_,

<O_mm_>_< n_O v_z<m_ A

<U_Im_>_< u_O xz<m_
<O_mm__>_< 40 v_2<m_..

131V,

181

hﬁs

v_w_<_>_<m<

v_m<_>_<m< .

OZ_ ._.Zm__\,_n__DOm mm_u_ m_<._.w._._<
om <w3 w<0m_<,
SST1FHIM ZON_w_m_>.

JJIAH3S m_mu<m_m_>m_m _Z_NN<ZOO.r
>Uzm0mm=>_m_ ._.w<00 I._.DOw

. >02m_mum_m__>_m_ ._.w<00 I._.DOw

.>n~2m_mum_m=>_.u._ 1svo2 I._.DOw_n

AONIDHINT ._.W<OO I._.DOWM

AONIOHIAWT 1SVOD HLNOS !

_,omm. _. _.N¢.oow
moom E.Nv omN
Fowm _.Fww omN
_.owm :Nv omN
—omm _. FN¢ omw
Fomm _._.Nv omN
Foom :.N¢ omN
_.oom _._.Nw omN i
Fowm ey omN
Smm Liey omN
cLSS’LIeY omN.
AR ANA 414
[AR=1=Q} _.Nw.omwH
_.owm :N¢ omw
mnwm :Nv omN
Fowm Liey omN.
€0¥S’L _.Nv.omww__
mo«m. L _.Nv.oow,.ﬂ
movm _._.Nw omN
momm Liey’ omN

movm _. _.N¢ omN,
momm 3 _.N¢ omN

_.oom _, FNv omwj

_.owm _. _,Nv oow
woom _. _,Nv omN
_,owm _._.Nv om

1095 Z,Nw omN

._.<I

m_m_n_ m__x_n_ m_<n_m_m_ v_ODw_._. _.m th
m_Om__n_ m_<m_ wo_n_<m_ n_m_GODI mm wm_.
w._.w_<n_ O._.D< wm_mm_ _.m w_.

ZO_._._Dm_n_wm_ ZO_._.Om_n_wz_ m_x<mm 100 vw

w._.m<n_ O._.3< wwmm__m_ 4 Nom

wm__._n_n_Dw ._.Z_<_2 m_._O_Im_> ZON<_>_< m_. oom
m_OI<._. >>m_IO >4n_n_3w \r_,mn_<w <Z<n_ R Nm

>._n_n_3w IO._.O<I._. 08’ NN .

._<._.Zm_m_ V_ODN_._.-wv_ODm._. ._L.Z_ >>m_ _>Im_>_m 1£97 mo_.

mO._.<._u_m_D m_m__._..ZON<_>_< om mm_.
STVIN WYL IMIYLS | 2L08Y

VAN WYIL SHIHLS-AHOLOVS VZzZid 19'ty

ONDIHVd 1HOdHIV 89S SdY 100°5Y
m_m_._.-mm_._. mOmzmh ho mwr 8

mu_OO._. ._._<_>_w-m_0mm__>_§oo On_O cm woN

n__>_<|_0 HIv- ._ NI mm_m_O £L Nm

wmumIO ._._Dom_o 4 Z._.m wn _.mmo_.mmmnze.m Nm mn_.

wmz_._ ANOHd mw _.mmormmgz<m_ ¢m ¢mh

w.Ow_IO _._DOI_O € Z._.w mh_.mmormmmuz.im No mh_.

. wn_O_>_ S1VIN w._m_>>0._. ._<._.Zm_m_-wm_._n_n5m n_OIw €9’ wmm
wn_OS_ w._.<_>_ m._m_>>0._. IVIN3Y-S3AIddNS n_OIm_mo.mmN

<>.__w m._.OOm_ n_z<._n_.__>> o¢ hww

._<._.me m_m_n.z_._>0 Zm_mu>XO\ZOOI< mm mvr

_8HLO-61/90 SaNIT m_zo:n_ ?: 96" wB
..ﬁzmm INIHOVIN m_o_ 2 E

o .. .. .ZO_._.Om_n_mZ_._._m_ _.mwwm_ oo mw

_ NOLOSdSNI LIg Z699300'S8
_ sHvd3dsyeol 88l

 NOLLOFdSNI L8 $¥991/00's8
 NOULOSdSNI 118 £9993/00°S8

1202 ‘LE 1SNONV - L ATNC

ONILSITHO3HD

ALIMOHLNY 314 S3AILID JAIS

V8L
‘oL

8L
‘9y8L
'9v8L

Ov8L

ov8L
lovas
lovaL
ov8L
‘ov8L
ov8L
«wmvwn.

.9¥8L

‘ov8L
oveL

\Sv8L
. .u.m.vwh .
svBL

v¥8L
-
evaL
,anh
Lv8L
0v8L
6£8L
6£8L

omwh
omwh

6E8L

,, . 1202111180,

_.NON\ _. Ewo
_.Nom\ l _.\mo

1202/11/80,
1202111180 ,ﬂ
. &ow: :wo

1202/ L/g0,

120211180,

1202/ 1/80;
FNON\F,FEQ____
LZ02/L1/80
1202/41L/80

1202/11/180)
202/1L1180,
1202111180,
1202/ /80,
1Z02/11/80.

 1202/LL80)
L202/11/80
. _.&om: /80;
120Z/LL/80;
1202111180
‘_Nom::wo___

_.Ncw\mo\wo
Fwoﬂmc\wo
_.Ncw\mo\wo

1202/E0/80,
L20Z/£0/80|
1202/€0/30!

1€02/€0/80

st

LSL
r
6L
8yl
Iy
ovl
spl.
phl:
vl
Zvl!
Lyl

ovL
6cl

8eL
d
9gk:
sel
Vel
€€l

zEL
LEL;
0EL
621

wﬁ

Lz

9zL
szt

2l
€zl



L INJWHOVLLY

VOIHIWY 40 SINvE |
VOIMINY 4O YNV,

VORIFNY 40 YNV

VOIHIAY 40 INVE'

VOIMINY 40 YINVE,

VOI4INY 40 YNvE
VOIMIWY 40 YNV

YOIHINY 4O MNve

VOIHIAY J0 MNVE

VOIHIWY 4O MNvE!

VOIHIWY JO NV

VOII3INY 40 MANvE;

VOldanyY 40 YNve, .

VYOIHIWY 4O MNVE,
YOI 0 YNV,
VOIYINWY 40 MNvE*

SWeN JseT Jopusy |

<O._Im=>_.< 40 v_z<m_.,,.
VOIHINY 40 3INvE:
YOININY 40 NvE

VOIMIWY 40 YNVE

L0SS LIZP 062

boes't lev'o6e

~ logs'lieroez

Lozs't LZ¥'06c

Logs'Llzyoee,

E0¥S’LLZY 062

102S°) I2h'062

£0¥S'L 125062
1025 LL2Y 06T
909"} LZF 062!

GS2S'L ey 062 |

S525°L 12V 062,

9025’1 12062

90¢S’LIZy 062

8095’1 L2 062 |

8025°| L2 062

#100v ¢

Bz 06,

Z0LS°L1ZY"062,
Lo9g'L 12y 062

109G LLZV'06Z

FONTHIINOD LSIANI NOSHY VO 100009
S3AIddNS 301440-XVIN 301440 99°vL

HINOL-NOZYINV :0L°ZLY

et SO SNOZVNBTEE

$3I1ddNS I1440-XVIN 301440 €S0LE

e SR O SHORE AT LS

SR S WO SV MOV [

. WOOZISEYL

H3dVd TYWHIH1-NOZYINY 5881

J18Y0 INOHJI-NOZVAY |8€°Ly

AL

Nvd 98N "YaNvVI10 mw<._6.._.m<s_._<>> yo'se

a3V SIN3-SdSN 62°G0E

S3N0TO WOIQIA-14S JdA .“ b¥'00€

ANV MIIAYILNI- m_m_u_n_Oﬂ-.waDm_m/\._.mwom.mn B

ONIdIHS Sdn (9820}

uanduasag

SEVO NOISNALXENOZYINY £ 61

HOLOTLON FOHNS-NOZVY €509

Sidvd o1nv ATII3d Om¢ LLL
FALN HOAH dINO-NOZVINY 1 80°EF

1202 'LE LSNONV - L AN

ONILSITMDO3HD

ALIMOHLNY 3dI4 S3ILID 3AId

9¥8L

ie1:74

iov8L

ov8L
ov8L
lovar
‘ov8L

9v8L

19¥8L

V8L
9¥8L

9¥8L

8L

9¥8L
‘opeL

Or8L

‘ov8L
ov8L

V8L

lov8s

| kzoz/kLBO.
L20Z/L1/80
1202/11/80
1202/L1/80
1202711180
1202/1 1180
L20e/1 1180 ”
LZ02/1L/80
1202/11/80!
1202/1L/80]
1202/L1/80
1202/11/0
1zoenigo;
1202/11/80
1202/11/80:
120Z/11/80
#3009yD)’
1202/11/80.
1202/1 .:wo_.,

Lc0e/11/80
L2oerL Lo

2Ll
b
oLt
694
891
91
il
id
yol
g9l
29t
L
09
651
81

LS

S1BQ ¥23YD | 8L,

961
GGl
ySli
€51



Odv NHId MV m_.m_Z,e.A“_,.U €0ES’L FNvomN, SOAS TvH31 40Hd Fw\howoo.wn 068L LC0eg/11/80° 26l

__ISNOLMOS O] 100 L1z 082, | INVWIMOJANSIMVOrNIANNT00L6Z  vL | izoenumo ksl
SNOLLYOINNWNOD HILHVYHD . LOPS'L12y 062! ._.m_Zm._w_.._.Z_ ) FZ._.mromNNmNooo.oo _.m¢Nw#._.OO< ‘ wm.wow o 8v8L L2oe/1L Ewom 061
mZO_._.<O_ZD_>_§OO m.m+m<1.o ~ Ho¥EL _.Nv.omN", . AL € NLS-L829110LOLOLSHZ8#1 D0V M_.Nh.mm _”wvw.h ! L20g/L1/80 | 681
wZO_._.<0_,_J_DS_S_OO m._m._.mdm._o ) LOVS'LIZY 06T | ) >._. N Z._.wm —.mNONooo_.o_.mva%._.UO/.\ wmm L mmvwh | 1202/11/80 | 88l

ONI ‘'SHOSSIHAWOD H3ANYE®  £09S'LLZH 062 v_0<n_._._m.m Sve ._.,_.N_.I.._.IO.Z m:mhmhwmm.v iL¥8L . 120e/1 /80| hw_‘
_ VOREAY 4O YNVE  80Z5'LIZy'06T] FOVLSOd ‘SINVLS-SdSN 0795 8L | VZ0Z/LB0; 98
VOIH3INY 40 ¥Z<m_,. 80SS°L12¥ 062! TANYd M3 _,\/Im._._.z_.v_mmmo d31S00Y ¥ A AR .,,.m_uwh 1L20e/1.1/80 .. a8l
<O_m._m.§<.n_0 v_Z<m_ | 80SSL _.Nv.omN_._ wm_._n_n_Dw,m_m_._.<>>J<2_n_ .w._.m_<_>_w_w20> .w.ﬂ.\_..w,_mm F F.w . _.mvwh LZ0Z/LLI80" V8!
.<O_w_..n._§<\n_0 ¥Z<m_ 809G°II2¥ 062 _ e JmDu_ oooo_. wvwh Fwow\_. _...\wo | mm 3 :
{ .<O_.Im_§.< ,n_O ,v_z.<.m womm 3 R#.@mw . _>_<,m._.r wx_m._.mn_m_D.u_-n:m._.Nm ,HON..hm 9¥8L L202/L1/80 . [£:13
VOIHIWY 40 MNvg . ¢omm_. _.N¢omN .; ) S319VL ONIATOS-LHYWIYM mmv.oom ,_..w¢wh | L20c/11/80 13:13
.<0_mm_$_<. 40 v_2<m_ . mmNm. 3 _.N¢.omN_q.. mm._OOO-m _0_m_ oomv o¥8L _ 1L202/1 1180 ow_.
<O_m_m__.>._< n_O v_2<m §6es’L _.Nv.omN”., Av3l mX_m+w.wDOOO .O._.In_m ..mxo_n.._, _.ﬂNo.om ) m”mvwh . L202/11/80° 6L
VOIHIWY 40 YNve 80997} _.Nv.ommm ._mDn_, oomN_. § .”m¢wh . _.NON\.r tmo - 8L

VOId3INY H40 MNve _ 80967} _.Nv.omm,. ) ._MDH_ mwmw_. 9¥8L LE02/L1/80 " LLL

VIOIH3AY 40 v_z<m_ woom.‘_.._.wv.mu.mw‘,,_f 13an4d m,oo.ov ) .ovww L202/1L L/80 | 9L
.<O_m_m._§< n_O .v_7._<m_  L095° _. L2y'06e . n_n_< m_w_<ImD ws__m-S_OOmn_n_n_< mmm o ”o¢wh LZ0Z/L1/80; SLL,
%0Em.§<. n_Oxz<m_l £099°L _.Nv.omN” 43IHO-IOVHOLS ANOHJI 66°0 ".owwh, ; ! Leoe/ _‘._.\wo .vh._. !

VOIJIWY JOMNVE,  L09S'LIZY 062! WYHOOHd HOLVINNIS- IUYHSNINIS S6'b1S vawh LEOZ/LL8O. ELL

lzogilelsnenv-L ANt -
ONILSITMOIHO

} ANJWHOVLLY ALIMOHLNY 3414 S3ILID 3AI4



b INJWHOVLLY

ONI ‘SIN3LSAS _../_m_m._v_.>._..m_.n._<m%

ONI ‘SWALSAS NI TM-ALTHVS

]

Alddns VIHOLINYI 39vI04d

A1ddNS WIMOLINY IHVOOHd

Alddns A(E.O.bZﬁ. m_m._<n.vO.In_ ,
AlddNS TVIHOLINVG 3HvO0Hd .
NOILO310Hd 314 1LYN - VdAN .
"0'd ANOWHNHL >._._mu_2 b
ONI ‘FHYMAYYH JOV SHIANIW
ONI ‘FHYMAHYH 30V SHIANIW !
ONI ‘JHVYMAOHVH 30V SHININ
ONI ‘IHYMAdvH 30V w_m_m_z_s__.
ONI .mFO:DOE.& ZOm>><.._
Q33dSNYT
ONI ONIdVOSANVT INNVYF .n_.x\

aulep 1seT Jopusp

ONI ‘dvmaasr!
ONI ‘dvmIa g r

31VH d AIAVa:

Sees’L1Zy 062!

Y09 125067

GZES'LLZY 062

._.Zm_,zm_m_m0<..._.z IVIW H3HSYM SiHvd “m. 15'89¢

3

7099'L 121062 S3MddNS DNINYITD _,B..%N
¥095° 1121062 !

¥095°L1LZH 062 : S3AMddNS DNINVITD 78’ vV

¥09S'LLEV 062 S3AddNS DNINV31D ww LSL

€0SS°LLEY 062 | - NVINd383 F-dIHSY38NEW moo.mh._. )

E0ES'L L2V 062 ~ SOAS VD31 404d 12/L0 058

55251 1ZV'062 SYIANILSVYH 182

$3MddNS DNINVITO {9204

GGcs' ey 062! AYILIVE AZL.06°E

GGes’LIZy062; JLOWTY IOVHYD ‘U3 LHOIN TUHO-Z NLS ”mmo.mm

109G LI2¥ 062 VS LVIH IN-HOLO3ANNOD JHIMze'e

E0ES'L 121062 | 1H0ddNS 31OW3H-SOAS 404d,00°052

6655°| _.N¢.omN“ 8O LO NINTVO-OAS LNIWILvdY a33am ,/, 000916

#1009 vonduasaq

8095°112¥ 062 |

809512V 06Z

713Nd HOHOL 24718

73Nd 68°Les L

E0ES'L LZK'06C w”_ SOAS Y31 40Ud 12/L0/05'6€2°L
1202 ‘LE 1SNDNY - L AINP
ONILSIT X03HD
ALIHOHLNY JY14 S31L1D 3JAI

HIHSVM SLHVd LIG340 (20't81-

0982
1098
i658L

698L

658L

8L
‘868
LS8L
968,
9%8L
958,

:GG8L

PS8L

£68¢

unowy |

1€S8L

k22

182

9584

+202/11/80-
L20Z/11/80;

1202/1L1/80:

LE0c/1L1/80"

L202/11/80

+202/L1/80.
+20Z/11/80
L20e/LL/80
120Z/L1/80:
120211180,
4202711180 _
1202/ 180

+c0e/11/80

L202/11/80

#M2UD e #oayo

1202/1 1180

Feoe/LL80

L20Z/1 1180

ote:

602

80¢;

. L0C!

902
<02

Ll
0z
20z,
102

00z,
2
861}
L6}

961

aur

S61 -

61

€61



} AINJWHOVLLY

SNOS % SILHNO z._
OTIS3LVIOOSSY B SONITIOO|
SOINOMLOTT3 1SVOD'
SOINOMLOTT LSY0O !
SNOLLYOINNINWOD HILHVHD |
SNOLLYOINNIWNOD HaLEVHO,
SNOILYOINNWWOD HaLHVHO |

*ONI ‘IHI4 m_zo_E:m_” _

ONI SOIHAVYYD 2 DNILNIYd INOO4 | N

JOHLINOD 183d n_m_N_m_OI._.D<..
TOHLNOD 1S3d A3ZIHOH1NY !
ALITION 181V

1By

SADIAHIS WHOLINN MHVYWYHY |

SW3LSAS ONIMHYIN IONVAQY ! -

ONI T1DADIHALS
SYOTVO0S

TVIMLSNONI NO-dvNS
AONIDV SINZ ALNNOD odm_._m

ONI ‘JHIL VIHYIN YINVS

§S2S LIy 062! SSINYVH LS3HOAdOYH NYTH O_._.<._.wmhm.m§

BOESLIZVOSE  MEIASM WALSAS MIDINMS Tl VN 002
(0511202 WSDOM YA INOHUAS TN2ON 55101
OESLIZVORE, 39OV 0/avY ONVE-iiL QOOMNEN 23 6067
Loy 112y 062 . A\LENISEE20L00600ISIZALOOV Y HE
DO NN NS00S0V 302
_.ovm L _.Nvomw 13INY3LINIZ Z._..w.oowmmwooo.—.o_.mvmwn._bnu( '86'¥02
s9es v ez, . 104D IsRaM ZZ00Y )
90€S5°L _.NvamN . JHOWSNIQ 'AgdvY3IS-SaHYD SSANISNG W,.m\..hhw
suos zy 62 £NISSONS TOMINGD 153d /0008
50951 LZ¥ 062 , FZ._.w.wO>w._Om._.ZOO ._..wm_n_. .,.oo.ow
€0vS'L L2y 062 E.\w-N_‘R wmum__._o mw,m_n._wum__>>\n_<&_ m _..oN.m. )

€0vS’1IEY 062!

adOV OL 3NI LINDHIO ¥E'eE
EO0ESLIZY'06C:  SLVIN ‘SHOW'STIMOL TVNIN-SITddNS dOHS | LZ'9E2
952G LIZY06Z] AIHONH-SOVLIWYN 1HOJSSVd 65t

€0€S’LIEP 062 W” JONVITdNOD 4vS-1H31S leeél

LOVS'LLZY 062

L099'LL2Y'062 | ONld 8SN 031 °Y3LHVLS 110A €5°81L2
109G }L2¥ 062 . NIONIH-L430-35 13 00°29
LOEQ'LIZH'06Z,  INILSIATYA'IHIL INNOW £2'66
1202 ‘Le 1SNonv - L AN
ONILSITHO3HD

ALIMOHLNY 3414 SAILID JAIL

92/L-2/9 L Z,._.w.mwu_\./mmmm‘q.w.dmh.mw P

98L
/8L

VL8L

| vi8L

€L8L

€L8L

eLsL

CL8L
L8L
0L8L

048L

‘608

898L
1£98L

998L

598

¥98L

€98/
298/

ho8L

1202108180
L20Z/0€/80
L202/0€/80.
1202/0£/80
1202/0£/80
1202/0€/80

1202/0€/80,
120Z/0€/80
L20Z/0€/80,
120Z/0€/80
120Z/0€/80
1202/0€/80
L20Z/0€/80,
1Z0Z/0E/80
1 20Z/0€/80
Ve0eis %0,
1202/1 1180
1202711180
L20Z/1L 1130

1202/11/80.

0gz,

6¢c i

82z
Vied
oze

sez:

vee.

€2z
zee,
1z
02z
612
i
Lz
91Z;
1z
vie
gLz
2z

e,



I INSJWHOVLLY

JHOWLIHM 'AQISSYD ‘1y383n |
ONI ‘SLONAOUd NOSMY'T
ONI ‘uvMaa ar'

SNOS ® SILHNO ‘N1

€0EG'HIZY 062,

SOAS VD1 12/1£0:00°eLe

mnwm.r_.mv.omwm . HIAANIYD 440 1NJ .2/1 169 LLE

8095°LICK 062"

§G2S'LIev 062,
1202 ‘L€ LSNONV - L AN
ONILSITMO3HO
ALMOHLNY 3HI4 S31L1D 3AI4

T3N48e°€SS’L

Hvd H3AAVIHdS (LEYLE

'6L8L
8L8L
118t

L8z

1202/0€/80
120Z/0£/80 .
1Z0Z/0€/80

1202/0€/80

vee
€EC.
[AXA

LeZ



} INSWHOVLLY

DZ<._m_m_m_> ._IDm_
mmmms.(:O >.rZDOO I_.DOw,
>OZm_Omm_>_m_ ._.w<OO I._.DOm

m<O._<OOm

me._OO w_D._ 2<w

mm_._.w<_>_ m.OZ(N_
>._n_n5m ._<_mO._._Z<q. m_m_<00m_n_

Alddns ._<_motz<_, mm<oomn_
00 o_Eom.m_ 9 w<o o_u_o«i
ONI mm<>>om<x m_o< w.xm_z_s_

ONI m_m_<.>>DW_<I 30V w.m_mz__z;

QWEN 1sET] IopLas

8095°} 121062
 £05'Liero6e.
- 095" 121 062
LOVS"LLZ 062!
109G 4125062
9L25'L12¥ 062,
005112y 067
Y095'L 121062
 LOVG'LLZY 06T
5095°L124°062;
109S°L LZ¥ 062
#1020

TSYE0'LLE
1an4 WYZL SXILLS-ISUNEWISY £1'89
dIHSHIEWIIN IIAO TN 8- 8 oL
2599 01 wm_<n_m_m__8 L'e
2H80-L/L0 T NLS-STOINHIS SVO 2’901
+z_<n_ n_m_n_n___._o HIvdIy, 8 mt
soe mm__._ob& Eo“_ om 1692
wm__._n_n_:w 02_z<m_._o v__m ..8
S3Nddns _oz_z<m._o 9599
m:m-mE b zB.o_Eon_ mo 188" F
_EE om_m_>> Nm or
.__o NIVHO % Hvg mv 0

r_o_ur._n_ummﬂ unowy

1202 L€ 1SNONV - L AINM

ONLLSIT MO3HD

ALIMOHLNY Y14 S3ILID IAI

888,
1881
[988L
688L
'vesL
‘ca8L
2o

z88L

1882
:088L
088L

_.Now\om\wo ,,
wNow\om\wo,

FNONBm\wo

1Z02/0€/80:
1202/0€/80.
1Z02/0€/20
1202/08780)
F_No_maﬂwo__

1202108780
 1z02/08/80

1202/0€/80

e X8y

Skey
e
L)
Zve:
L¥e)
x4
8cz,
L€z
|
sz
aun



ATTACHMENT 2

FIVE CITIES FIRE AUTHORITY
DEPARTMENTAL LABOR DISTRIBUTION

PAY PERIOD
06/11/2021 - 06/24/2021
712/2021
BY ACCOUNT
5101 Salaries Full time 77,444 82
5102 Salaries Part-Time - PPT -
5103 Salaries Part-Time - TPT 2,689.50
5105 Salaries OverTime 33,920.18
5106 Salaries Strike Team OT -
5108 Holiday Pay 4,129.00
5109 Sick Pay 1,414.32
5110 Annual Leave Buyback -
5111 Vacation Buyback -
5112 Sick Leave Buyback -
5113 Vacation Pay 1,320.96
5114 Comp Pay 7,815.60
5115 Annual Leave Pay 5,315.00
5121 PERS Retirement 20,054.99
5122 Social Security 10,358.13
5123 PARS Retirement -
5126 State Disability Ins. 1,051.68
5127 Deferred Compensation 125.00
5131 Health Insurance 17,247.74
5132 Dental Insurance 968.16
5133 Vision Insurance 267.04
5134 Life Insurance 121.52
5135 Long Term Disability 154.34

184,397.98




ATTACHMENT 2

FIVE CITIES FIRE AUTHORITY
DEPARTMENTAL LABOR DISTRIBUTION
PAY PERIOD
06/25/2021 - 07/08/2021
7/16/2021
BY ACCOUNT
5101 Salaries Full time 68,407.18
5102 Salaries Part-Time - PPT -
5103 Salaries Part-Time - TPT 5,090.25
5105 Salaries OverTime 40,076.38
5106 Salaries Strike Team OT -
5108 Holiday Pay 5,807.32
5109 Sick Pay 163.60
5110 Annual Leave Buyback -
5111 Vacation Buyback -
5112 Sick Leave Buyback -
5113 Vacation Pay 2,689.11
5114 Comp Pay 10,283.13
5115 Annual Leave Pay 1,804.13
5121 PERS Retirement 20,239.81
5122 Social Security 10,378.90
5123 PARS Retirement -
5126 State Disability Ins. 1,117.64
5127 Deferred Compensation 125.00
5131 Health Insurance 17,247.74
5132 Dental Insurance 968.16
5133 Vision Insurance 267.04
5134 Life Insurance 121.52
5135 Long Term Disability 154.34

184,941.25




ATTACHMENT 2

FIVE CITIES FIRE AUTHORITY
DEPARTMENTAL LABOR DISTRIBUTION
PAY PERIOD
07/09/2021 - 07/22/2021
7/30/2021

BY ACCOUNT

5101
5102
5103
5105
5106
5108
5109
5110
5111
5112
5113
5114
5115
5121
5122
5123
5126
5127
5131
5132
5133
5134
5135
5143

Salaries Full time
Salaries Part-Time - PPT
Salaries Part-Time - TPT
Salaries OverTime
Salaries Strike Team OT
Holiday Pay

Sick Pay

Annual Leave Buyback
Vacation Buyback

Sick Leave Buyback
Vacation Pay

Comp Pay

Annual Leave Pay
PERS Retirement
Social Security

PARS Retirement

State Disability Ins.
Deferred Compensation
Health Insurance

Dental Insurance

Vision Insurance

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability
Uniform Allowance

70,169.34

5,720.50
38,929.54
42,844.89

680.16
9,540.16

5,404.32
6,470.40
3,982.16
20,298.14
16,710.16

1,694.03

39,000.00

261,443.80




ATTACHMENT 2

FIVE CITIES FIRE AUTHORITY
DEPARTMENTAL LABOR DISTRIBUTION
PAY PERIOD
07/23/2021 - 08/05/2021
8/13/2021

BY ACCOUNT

5101
5102
5103
5105
5106
5108
5109
5110
5111
5112
5113
5114
5115
5121
5122
5123
5126
5127
5131
5132
5133
5134
5135
5143

Salaries Full time
Salaries Part-Time - PPT
Salaries Part-Time - TPT
Salaries OverTime
Salaries Strike Team OT
Holiday Pay

Sick Pay

Annual Leave Buyback
Vacation Buyback

Sick Leave Buyback
Vacation Pay

Comp Pay

Annual Leave Pay
PERS Retirement

Social Security

PARS Retirement

State Disability Ins.
Deferred Compensation
Health Insurance

Dental Insurance

Vision Insurance

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability
Uniform Allowance

62,594.73

4,437.00
35,861.60
81,207.97

3,850.28

1,360.32
8,021.76
864.69
21,126.30
14,975.71

1,652.86
125.00
17,247.74
968.16
267.04
121.52
154.34
519.30

255,356.32




ATTACHMENT 2

FIVE CITIES FIRE AUTHORITY
DEPARTMENTAL LABOR DISTRIBUTION
PAY PERIOD
08/06/2021 - 08/19/2021
8/27/2021
BY ACCOUNT
5101 Salaries Full time 61,460.09
5102 Salaries Part-Time - PPT -
5103 Salaries Part-Time - TPT 2,958.00
5105 Salaries OverTime 39,203.12
5106 Salaries Strike Team OT 64,215.09
5108 Holiday Pay 3,864.38
5109 Sick Pay 1,117.44
5110 Annual Leave Buyback -
5111 Vacation Buyback -
5112 Sick Leave Buyback -
5113 Vacation Pay 6,577.66
5114 Comp Pay 7,715.86
5115 Annual Leave Pay 1,714.15
5121 PERS Retirement 20,990.65
5122 Social Security 12,524.46
5123 PARS Retirement -
5126 State Disability Ins. 1,184.84
5127 Deferred Compensation 125.00
5131 Health Insurance 17,247.74
5132 Dental Insurance 968.16
5133 Vision Insurance 267.04
5134 Life Insurance 121.52
5135 Long Term Disability 154.34
5143 Uniform Allowance 519.30

242,928.84




STAFF REPORT

TO: Chair and Board Members MEETING DATE: September 17, 2021

FROM: Stephen C. Lieberman, Fire Chief

SUBJECT: Station Coverage Constraints Related to Memorandum of Agreement and
Temporary Staffing Options

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended the Board receive the staff report and provide direction to the Fire Chief.

BACKGROUND

Prior to the formation of the Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA), all three member communities had
initiated the transition from volunteer-based organizations to full-time/career staffing. The
Firefighter position remained a part-time/Reserve Firefighter position. FCFA, along with numerous
other fire departments in San Luis Obispo County were significantly impacted with recruitment,
retention and accountability/scheduling challenges related to this part-time position, including an
increased opportunity for full-time career positions and limited compensation with little to no
benefits. As an example of the compensation challenge, the top step for a FCFA Reserve
Firefighter is $17.00/hour. In-n-Out Burger in Arroyo Grande currently has a sign on the front door
offering this amount as a starting wage with an opportunity to earn $20.50/hour. These part-time
employees have all worked additional jobs which has limited their ability to work at the FCFA.
With regards to opportunity for full-time employment, these local agencies are currently recruiting
for full-time Firefighter positions:

City # Positions
Paso Robles 3

San Luis Obispo 9

Santa Maria 8-10

The member communities supported a prioritization of the FCFA Strategic Plan and began the
transition to full-time Firefighter positions in July 2018. A staff report from November 18, 2017 is
attached for reference as this document provided the platform for the prioritization. This
transitional process resulted in the recruitment of six career firefighters. The Oceano Community
Services District (OCSD) was unable to increase their contribution to support the hiring of the
three remaining full-time positions, which led to the effort of Oceano Measure A-20, and the
related amendments to a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between the three member
communities. The current MOA callls for the OCSD to bring a revenue measure back to their



community in 2022, and the MOA also fixed member community financial contributions for fire
and emergency services at fiscal year 2019-2020 levels. The failure of Measure A-20, along with
the fixed financial contribution rate has placed operational challenges on the organization as
operating expenses, a global pandemic, and increasing calls for service have strained the budget.

The FCFA Joint Powers Authority (JPA) agreement does not define specific station/staffing levels
as related to operations. The only mention of staffing levels is included within the definition of the
funding formula (Original Agreement - Exhibit B 3 / Third Amendment - #3 B).

Original JPA Funding Formula

The original formula included four components including community population (25%), current
staffing (25%), service levels (25%), and assessed valuation (25%).

“Twenty-five percent (25%) of costs shall be fixed and shall be based on the following formula:

. Community  Stations ' Percentage . Staffing | Percentage  Total |
| Arroyo 1 | 33% 6 i 40% | 37%
. Grande [ I B _ ) -

Grover 1 - 33% '6 ' 40% 37%
' Beach | - | | ;
| Oceano 1 1 33% '3 20% ' 27% 5

The fixed base is assessed according to each Jurisdiction’s proportional share of the Authority's
full membership total of Full Time Equivalent Personnel and fire stations existing as of the effective
date of the Joint Powers Agreement as noted above.”

Current (3) Amendment to the JPA Funding Formula

The third amendment to the JPA agreement (#3 Funding Formula, B) eliminated the assessed
valuation component from the original formula. The revised formula is based on population (33%),
current staffing levels (33%), and service levels (33%):

“The funding contributions specified in Section 2 were determined using a transitional formula that
modified component 3 of the Funding Formula related to fire stations to reflect current staffing
levels. The funding contributions specified in Section 2 will be used for Fiscal Years 2020/21 and
2021/22 and possibly Fiscal Year 2022/23 as provided in Section 4B.”

The intent of this transitional formula related to staffing was to eventually “equalize” the allocation
percentages as shown above by eliminating the “staffing” component as staffing levels were
hoped to be equal among the three member communities at the conclusion of the MOA process.

Staff Report.  Station Coverage Constraints Related to the Memorandum of Agreement Page 2
and Temporary Staffing Options
September 17, 2021



Based on this transitional formula, the staffing cost allocation in the fiscal year 2021-22 budget is:

Arroyo Grande ' $710,924 37.5%
Grover Beach $710,924 37.5%
Oceano $473,949 25.0%

Service Calls

Call volume increased 10% in 2020. Listed below is a summary of calls for service by community.
The “Aid” column represents both local and out of county aid provided by FCFA.

Five Cities Fire Authority Incident Data
Based on Station and Community

Total Incidents

Yr. FCFA Change . AG Change GB Change OCE Change Aid Change Total Call Volume
2018 = 3520 1824 1008 566 164 3684
2019 34339 -2.3% 1814 -0.5% 1049 -45% 543 -4,1% 166 12% 3605 -2.1%
2020 3778 9 99:: 1962 8.2% 10?5 25% 677 24.7% 204 2259% 3982 105%

% of Incidents per Community
yr. AG GB OCE
2018 51.8% 31.2% 16.1%
2019 52.7% 305% 15.8%
2020 51.9%  285%  17.9%

STATION CLOSURES AND STAFFING

The Reserve Firefighter program is based out of the Oceano fire station (Station 3). With the
challenges described above, the lack of available part-time staff has resulted in temporary
closures over the past several years. With the latest employee promotion, the station is currently
closed two out of three shifts. While FCFA units continue to respond to Oceano, the closure of
the station is less than optimal. A fire station is a key landmark within a community. With the
advent of vehicle location technology (GPS), the geographical location of a fire station does not
necessarily mean that the fire station location will always provide the fastest response of
emergency resources. FCFA units are dispatched based where the closest resource to the call
for service is located. A station closure could result in increased response times, and of course
Oceano (or Arroyo Grande and Grover Beach) residents would prefer that their fire station remain
open. FCFA staff has evaluated the current situation, and has identified several options for Board
consideration:

Reinstatement of the Reserve Firefighter Program — The FCFA could perform a recruitment
to fill two part-time positions. The challenges to this program have been clearly identified and
acknowliedged by current and prior FCFA Boards. Unlike full-time staff (represented positions),
part-time employees cannot be mandated or force hired to work a shift. A part-time employee who
failed to report to work would be subject to progressive discipline potentially leading to termination,
but this fact does not resolve the fact that a shift could go unfilled. Maintaining a part-time work

Staff Report:  Station Coverage Constraints Related to the Memorandum of Agreement Page 3
and Temporary Staffing Options
September 17, 2021



force in an emergency response organization does not guarantee a consistent staffing or service
level to the communities. As an example, the current part-time employee has scheduled time off
for several shifts. If this was a represented position, the employee’s shifts would be covered by
other’s to maintain negotiated minimum staffing levels (mandate/force-hire).

With the recent promotion of a former Reserve Firefighter to a full-time position, the existing
Reserve Firefighter Program is down to one employee. The funding for this program is based on
three employees which would cover all three shifts. Due to the recruitment and retention
challenges of a part-time firefighter position, these two positions have remained vacant. The
approximate cost to hire and equip a part-time or full-time employee is over $12,000. While the
FCFA requires candidates to have graduated from a state approved fire academy, successful
recruits are also required to complete an in-house training program to learn FCFA-specific
operational procedures, along with focused medical training as the FCFA provides “Expanded
Scope” emergency medical services. The majority of the cost of this in-house training is related
to overtime expenses for off-duty personnel to provide focused and condensed training. As shared
with the Board in 2017, maintaining the Reserve program is not recommended.

Dissolution_of Reserve Firefighter Program and Recruitment of One Full-Time/Career

Firefighter — There exists funding to eliminate the part-time program and hire one full-time
employee. While less than optimal (shift schedules require three employees) to cover a position
24/71365, this represented position would always be filled (via force-hire or mandate), providing a
more consistent staffing and service level.

The Fire Chief has met with the FCFA Treasurer and reviewed the existing Reserve Firefighter
program budget. The annual $147,500 could also offset the cost of a single full-time firefighter,
while allowing funding for a part-time communications officer.

“Down-Staffing” another Fire Station — The Arroyo Grande and Grover Beach fire stations are
staffed by three personnel, while the Oceano station is typically staffed with two. This is related
to the formation of the FCFA and Oceano providing less full-time positions than the other member
agencies. The Arroyo Grande or Grover Beach station staffing could be reduced to two personnel,
allowing the Oceano station to be open with two personnel. This would create an increased safety
issue for crews, and a further decrease in the level of service provided the communities (reference
2017 staff report). Additionally, the second amendment to the JPA dated June 7, 2010 states,
“...Continued transition to Career Firefighter position with hiring of three (3) full-time positions to
be assigned to the Grover Beach station.” Down-staffing the Grover Beach station would conflict
with the intent of the second amendment.

“Up-Staffing” with Off-Duty Personnel — The Fire Chief could hire full-time personnel who are

off-duty to prevent a station closure. This option would require the expenditure of overtime funds
that are not included in the budget. Listed below are some rough cost estimates:

Fire Captain at Station Scheduled

Overtime Engineer or Firefighter $2,000 2x this amount for both positions

Two Shifts/Week $4,000

10 Shifts/Month (20 total) $40,000

Annual Estimated Cost $480,000 / $960,000

Staff Report:  Station Coverage Constraints Related to the Memorandum of Agreement Page 4

and Temporary Staffing Options
September 17, 2021



This alternative would impact the ability for full-time employees to use their days off to rest and
spend needed time with family. Additionally, the use of overtime employees who do not
consistently work together as a crew impacts crew cohesion and coordination.

Closing a Fire Station and Utilizing a Task Force Response — If one of the fire stations were
to be closed, another station could be staffed with four personnel. This would allow a “Task Force”
response model which is used in Pismo Beach and Los Osos. Utilizing this concept, two FCFA
apparatus would respond to an emergency call for service. If another emergency call was
received (a 3" call for service), and was considered high priority (i.e. cardiac arrest), the task
force would split to allow a rapid response to the 3" call, with the remaining task force members
joining them as soon as they were available. While not optimal, this is an operational strategy that
could be used during station closures. FCFA is currently using this model as a pilot study on days
when the Oceano station is closed.

Rotating Station Closures — The need to close a station due to inadequate staffing could be
rotated among the three member communities. While possible, there are logistical challenges to
a “rotating brown-out” including:

o Dispatch of Resources — there could be disruption in the efficient dispatch of call with a
constant change in equipment assignment/location.

e Crew Quarters — assuming the implementation of a task force response, the Oceano
station modular could not accommodate four crew members and the Grover Beach station
would require some minor remodeling work.

» Location of Ladder Truck — Due to the vehicle’s length, the ladder truck cannot be parked
inside the Grover Beach or Oceano fire stations. The exterior equipment cabinets of fire
engines do not lock, creating a security concern.

CONCLUSION

There exists no “obvious™ solution to the staffing shortfalls and station impacts given the
constraints of the Memorandum of Agreement and competitive job market. Staff would
recommend continuing a task-force response structure and the recruitment of one full-time
Firefighter. This will guarantee the partial staffing of the Oceano station (48 hours/2 days per
week), and a flexible response pattern to continue to care for the member communities. This
recommendation will allow the organization to stay within budgeted funding levels.

FISCAL IMPACT

Potential costs associated with on-boarding new employees or hiring off-duty staff:
e On-Board Costs $12,000+ per employee (estimated)
¢ Internal Academy $60,000

¢ Up-Staffing with Overtime Staff $480,000 - $960,000 (2 or 3 person staffing)

Staff Report:  Station Coverage Constraints Related to the Memorandum of Agreement Page 5
and Temporary Staffing Options
September 17, 2021



ALTERNATIVES
The following alternatives are provided for the Board’s consideration:
1. Direct the Fire Chief to create a full-time Firefighter position, eliminate the part-time
shift-based program, and support a task-force response model.
2. Direct the Fire Chief to implement a different alternative.
3. Provide other direction to staff.

ATTACHMENT:

Staff Report “Reserve Firefighter Program” November 18, 2017

Staff Report:  Station Coverage Constraints Related to the Memorandum of Agreement Page 6
and Temporary Staffing Options
September 17, 2021



STAFF REPORT

Chair and Board Members MEETING DATE: November 18, 2017
FROM: Stephen C. Lieberman, Fire Chief

SUBJECT: Reserve Firefighter Program

RECOMMENDATION

Provide direction to the Fire Chief to implement a plan for a phased transition of the Reserve Firefighter
program from part time to full ime employees, along with a plan for temporary fire station closures.

BACKGROUND

The Board recently adopted a Strategic Plan which identified critical staffing needs for the next five year
period (summary documents attached). What the plan did not include was a phasing component. This
staff report has a focus on one of the job classifications, namely the transition to a full-time Firefighter

position.

Long before the creation of the Five Cities Fire Authority in 2010, each of the member communities had
volunteer-based fire departments. Due to a number of factors including the availability of volunteer
community members to respond to 9-1-1 calls, increasing State and Federal safety and training
requirements, increasing call volume, an aging population and increased development, the member
communities began a transition to full-time staffing in the 1990’s. The last vestige of the volunteer fire
service within the Five Cities Fire Authority is the Reserve Firefighter (part time) program.

Reserve firefighters are stationed on a daily basis at the three fire stations, and are often the
Driver/Operator at the Oceano Station #3 due to two-person staffing. Recruitment and retention
challenges continue to plague this program, with a consistent decline in the employee base. The current
roster of available reserve firefighters is currently seven employees. The shortage of trained employees is
having an adverse impact on safety, staffing levels and the operating budget.

The Fire Chief and staff have attempted to sustain the program by:
¢ Increasing the hourly wage
Visiting the local fire academy for recruiting visits
Sending letters to other fire academies throughout California
Transitioning to a “continuous” recruitment model

Other communities in San Luis Obispo County are also dealing with this challenge. The City of
Atascadero has hired full time firefighters, Paso Robles has approved additions to staffing based on
increasing call volume and development, and the City of Pismo Beach has made contractual
modifications with CAL FIRE to maintain appropriate staffing levels at the firefighter rank.



Due to this ongoing challenge in providing appropriate staffing levels, two organizational threats have
been identified; safety and funding.

Safety

The more significant threat is safety. As the Board is aware, this organization is experiencing significant
year over year increases in call volume (2017 year to date is currently 4.1% higher than 2016). Lacking
the appropriate staffing levels, the communities are at risk of receiving an inconsistent level of service.
General Counsel will address this issue in a separate correspondence to the Board.

As the Fire Chief has shared with the Board in the past, clinical changes in Emergency Medical Services
(EMS) response to cardiac arrest has had an impact on staffing levels. Recent clinical research has
shown that rapid chest compressions performed for up to 20 minutes at the scene of the patient's
collapse have a profound effect on patient outcome. To perform what is referred to as “High Performance”
or “Pit Crew" CPR, the engine company should have three personnel to integrate with the ambulance
crew. Currently, there are only two employees stationed at Station 3 (Oceano). This station responds in
not only Oceano but into areas of Arroyo Grande and Grover Beach. When Engine 3 is committed to a
CPR call, they will request a second FCFA engine company to assist them with the chest compressions.
This reduces the availability of available resources and moves a second engine company out of their
geographic response area.

The recent fire on Traffic Way in Arroyo Grande was another example of the situation this organization is
in. Initial dispatch reports stated that a vegetation fire had spread to a residential home. FCFA resources
responded with all available resources, a total of 9 personnel (one of which was transported to the
hospital by ambulance for possible dehydration). CAL FIRE resources also responded per the existing
automatic aid agreement; but they responded from outside of the service area. As illustrated by the May
11, 2017 commercial structure fire in Arroyo Grande, there is no guarantee that additional resources will
be able to respond to assist the FCFA. On May 11t CAL FIRE was committed to another commercial fire
in Los Osos and resources were slow to respond FCFA on that date.

NFPA 1710 provides the following guideline for a response to a residential structure fire:

Activity Performed By Firefighters Firefighters Required
Initial Size-Up (1%t Captain on-scene)
Interior attack hose line (2in)
Exterior rescue hose line (2out)
Pump operator

Incident commander

Rescue or back up hose line needed
Exposure protection/Safety officer
Second pump operator

Vertical ventilation

Horizontal ventilation

Aerial Apparatus Operator

S NN DA aDPDN =

Minimum attack personnel for offensive strategies 15

The Fire Authority has an approved daily staffing number of 9 (including a Battalion Chief) available for
emergency response.



Funding
Funding for the program is based on a standard formula:

365 days/year x 24 hours 8,760 hours
8,760 hours x 3 fire stations 26,280 hours
26,280 hours x $14/hour $367,920

This formula does not account for unfilled shifts filled by Reserve Firefighter overtime rates (1.5x). Related
to filling open shifts, full-time Fire Captains and Engineers will work these open shifts when needed at an
overtime rate (1.5x) which impacts the full-time employee overtime budget. Given the current staffing level
of 7, the employees are working more overtime shifts.

Reserve Firefighter — Standard 24-hour shift $346
Reserve Firefighter — Overtime 24-hour shift $519
Fire Engineer - Overtime 24-hour shift $1,005
Fire Captain - Overtime 24-hour shift $1,194

Reserve Firefighter Budget

Staff has made some preliminary calculations related to the available funding for the remainder of the
fiscal year (8 months), utilizing hybrids of the needed shifts being filled by employees at the compensation
levels identified above. In the best case scenario (Firefighters working a standard shift), funding remains
for less than 7.5 months. In a more extreme case, funding would be exhausted in less than 5 months.

Career Captain/Engineer Overtime

Overtime to fill a Firefighter position was not included in the budget planning process for the full time
employees. Adequate funding does not exist in the Overtime budget that would allow career personnel to
fill the firefighter position.

Given all of the factors identified in the opening section of this report, the organization can no longer
support a part-time employee program (which is required to perform a skilled and vital role), and the initial
transition to full-time employees must be considered.

Given both available funding and staffing, the Fire Chief is recommending the Board consider moving
forward with the initial recruitment of three full-time firefighters, and a planned transition to 9 FTE
firefighters over the next two fiscal years. Initially, an attempt to preserve the Reserve Firefighter program
at the current level along with the appointment of three FTE Firefighters would be attempted.



Several scenarios are presented below for Board consideration:

Current Deployment Strategy

Station 1 Station 2 Station 3
AG GB OCE
Captain 1 1 1
Engineer 1 1
Firefighter (PT Reserve) 1 1 1
Total 3 3 2
5-Year Strategic Plan
Station 1 Station 2 Station 3
AG GB OCE
Captain 1 1 1
Engineer 1 1 1
Firefighter (FTE) 2 1 1
Total 4 3 3
FTE Transition Scenario - Maintain 6 PT / Hire 3 FTE (2018/2019)
Station 1 Station 2 Station 3
AG GB OCE
Captain 1 1 1
Engineer 1 1
Firefighter (3 FTE/6 PT Reserve) 1 1 1
Total 3 3 2
FTE Transition Scenario - Hire Additional 6 FTE (2019/2020)
Station 1 Station 2 Station 3
AG GB OCE
Captain 1 1 1
Engineer 1 1
Firefighter (FTE) 1 1 1
Total 3 3 2

The Board should also consider the temporary closure (Brown Out) of a fire station should staffing levels
reach unsafe levels. Maintaining a two-person crew at a fire station is inadequate. The Board could
consider the temporary closure of a specific fire station or a rotational model which would have each of
the three stations temporarily closed.

Should the Board support the concept of a temporary station closure, the remaining two fire stations will
have three-person crews. The downside to this option is increased response times to areas served by the
closed fire station, and less personnel serving the communities.



Station Closure Scenario #1 - Current Staffing

Station 1 Station 2 Station 3
AG GB OCE
Captain 1 2
Engineer 1 1
Firefighter (PT Reserve) 1
Total 3 3 0

Station Closure Scenario #2 - Transition to 3 FTE (2018/2019)

Station 1 Station 2 Station 3
AG GB OCE
Captain 2 1
Engineer 1 1
Firefighter (3 FTE/6 PT Reserve) 1 1
Total 4 3 0

Allows for Squad Staffing

Station Closure Scenario #2 - Transition to 9 FTE (2018/2019)

Station 1 Station 2 Station 3
AG GB OCE
Captain 2 2
Engineer 1 1
Firefighter (FTE) 2 1
Total 5 4 0

Allows for Squad Staffing

* Firefighter position based on addition of three positions and use of available Captain position to fill
Engineer/Firefighter position at second fire station.

FISCAL IMPACT
The current budget for the Reserve Firefighter program will likely be expended before the end of the

current fiscal year. Overtime for career Fire Captains and Engineers will also likely be overspent due in
part to filling open Reserve Firefighter shifts.

Based on planning estimates, the cost of a full-time firefighter is $100,000 annually. Three employees are
required to perform the duties of one firefighter position (shift scheduling). The total estimated cost is
$300,000.00 annually. Assuming the Board was to support the following transition strategy, additional
investment would be estimated at the following level:

FY 2018/2019 Hire 3 Full Time Firefighters $300,000
FY 2019/2020 Fire 6 Full Time Firefighters $600,000

Once phased out, the Reserve Firefighter budget of approximately $368,000 would provide a partial
offset.



ALTERNATIVES
The following alternatives are provided for the Board's consideration:

1. Direct the Fire Chief to sustain the Reserve Firefighter program, supplementing open shifts
with career Fire Captains and Engineers as needed. Additionally, direct the Fire Chief to
order temporary fire station closures when staffing requirements cannot be met.

2. Direct the Fire Chief to plan for a transition to full time Firefighter staffing in the next planned
budget process, along with planning for temporary fire station closures as needed.

3. Direct the Fire Chief to immediately proceed with a transition replacing the Reserve
Firefighter program with three full-time Firefighter positions and beginning a recruitment (This
would also entail working with Local 4403 in amending the existing MOU), and to move
forward with an implementation plan to implement temporary fire station closures.

4. Provide other direction.

Staff Report: Page 2
(Date)

ATTACHMENTS

Five Cities Fire Authority Strategic Plan — Proposed Organization Chart (Schedule B)
Five Cities Fire Authority Strategic Plan — Staffing Summary (Schedule G)

PREPARED BY



